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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR MAN

MR. TULASI RAM GAUTAM
Chairman

ur performance till

date has remained

quite remarkable.
Financial and Operational
Indicators of the company
and the users’ responses
of our high quality service
are the testimony of the fact
that company has remained
very successful in meet-
ing its desired goals and
objectives. We strive hard
to be innovative and aim to
deliver high quality products
and services to our users all
the time.

After many years of perseverance, focus and
hard work, Karja Suchana Kendra Limited has
finally succeeded in implementing all three
projects of national importance: Microfinance
Credit Information Bureau, Secured Trans-
action Registry and new Commercial Credit
Information Bureau. All three projects which
are considered to be major infrastructures
for the development of the financial sector
are expected to boost the growth of the credit
market and extend the reach of the credit to
poor and underprivileged of the country.

Microfinance bureau that we will be starting
very soon will play a huge role in restraining the

growth of multiple lending, credit delinquen-
cies and over indebtedness prevailing in the
microfinance sector of the country. Weakening
performance of MF institutions in the country
is due in part to the absence of information
sharing among the institutions that has led to
increase the level of asymmetric information
leading to worsening repayment performance
inthe sector. In such circumstances, MF credit
bureau can play a significant role in addressing
the above problems and promoting the financial
inclusion.

The operation of Secured Transactions Registry
service shall go a long way in contributing to
the growth of credit market in the country. The
financial institutions are reluctant to lend mon-
ey to small businesses using movable goods as
collateral. The main reason for the reluctance
is the lack of legal procedures to “perfect” and
enforce a security interest in movable goods.
Secured Transaction Registry will allow Secured
Parties to perfect their security interests and
establish priority of their security interests in
the movable goods of the borrower. Well-func-
tioning secured transactions systems enable
businesses to use their movable assets as
security to generate capital.

The new Commercial Credit Bureau will
replace the existing bureau and will be deliver-
ing services through its advanced platform. The
new system will have highly advanced system
architecture that will ensure the security and
confidentiality of the data and provide fast
and easy access of services to the users. Our
objective always remains to introduce best
technology and systems so that the banks and
financial institutions located in any parts of
the country can access the credit information
service easily without any problem. We strive
hard to maintain quality of our service so that
it adds value in the decision making of the
lenders.

Our vision has always been to develop Kendra
as a world class bureau in terms of products,
services and standards and establish it as a
change agent and major catalyst in the growth
of country’s credit market. After the operation of
all three systems, the Kendra will grow into an
institution with the largest repository of credit
data in the country. All the credits extended
in the economy will be captured by Kendra.
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With the volume of data collected by it, it can
come out with various value-added products
and services that will drive the growth of credit
market further. The Bureau can turn into a
one window solution provider for diverse areas
banking business in the country.

Our performance till date has remained quite
remarkable. Financial and Operational Indica-
tors of the company and the users’ responses
of our high quality service are the testimony
of the fact that company has remained very
successful in meeting its desired goals and
objectives. We strive hard to be innovative
and aim to deliver high quality products and
services to our users all the time.

The year 070/071 also remained very productive
for us. The company witnessed the growth of
25.4% in its Net Profit. Kendra paid Rs. 12.8
million as the bonus to its employees and
Rs. 32.2 million as the corporate tax to the
government. On the Operation side, Kendra
delivered secured, uninterrupted and error
free services to allits users through out the year.

We are growing fast and see huge potential of
our service in the future. We are kindly assisted
by all our stakeholders in our endeavors to grow
and move forward. | would like to thank all our
member institutions, Nepal Rastra Bank and
other government agencies for their support
extended to us all the time. | also take this
opportunity to thank Asian Development Bank
for being generous to provide us the Grant of
$ 2.5 million to set up Microfinance Credit
Information Bureau in the country. Without
the support of all our stakeholders, we could
not have come so far and achieved so much
within such a short period of time.

Last but not the least, | would like thank all my
colleagues in the Board for their team spirit and
co-operation to help build this company. | also
would like to appreciate the untiring efforts of
all the staffs of Kendra who, through their hard
work and commitment, always lived up to our
expectations and delivered the results that we

all were looking for. Thanks to them.
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CEO MESSAGE

MR. ANIL CHANDRA ADHIKARI
CEO

he operating revenue

increased by 21.7%

where as operating
expenses increased by only
2.5% giving rise to the incre-
ment in operating profit by
25.2%. The operating profit
reached to the figure of
Rs. 140.7 million as compared
to the previous year’s figure of
112.4 million. The pretax profit
edged to Rs. 128 million and
the company earned the net
profit of Rs. 95.7 million this
year, an increment of 25.4% on
previous year’s earning of
Rs. 76.4 million.

The year 070/071 ended on a good note.

The company achieved a growth of 25.4% in
its net profit this year. The operating reve-
nue increased by 21.7% where as operating
expenses increased by only 2.5% giving rise
to the increment in operating profit by 25.2%.
The operating profit reached to the figure of
Rs. 140.7 million as compared to the previous

year’s figure of 112.4 million. The cost to income
ratio decreased from 14% in 069/070 to 11.5%
this year due to prudent cost management
initiatives imposed by the bureau. The pretax
profit edged to Rs. 128 million and the company
earned the net profit of Rs. 95.7 million this
year, an increment of 25.4% on previous year’s
earning of Rs. 76.4 million. On the operations
side, company delivered uninterrupted high
quality services to its users through out the
year. The system availability was hundred
percent and there were no any reported
cases of system inaccessibility, credit report
errors, data inaccuracies, poor invoicing, poor
customer service etc.

The major achievement of the year was the
completion of all three projects that were long
overdue and pending. The Bureau completed
the installation and commissioning of both new
Commercial Credit Bureau and Microfinance
Credit Bureau systems. The major highlight of
the new system is its system architecture that
is robust, modular and flexible. The users can
load and access the data in the most secured
environment. Security and confidentiality of
data is regarded as two most vitally important
ingredients of the system operation.

Both the systems are at present collecting
the data from their respective users. Since
the systems have inbuilt process of collecting
data and verifying their quality, all the incoming
data are subjected to sanity checks before they
are loaded into the database. This sanity checks
are in the form of iteration cycles where the
data are checked in cycles and finally verified.
Because of the poor quality of the data in bank-
ing and microfinance sector, the data sanity
checks may take longer time. Once iteration
cycles are completed, the system will be put
“on live” for the users to use it.

The installation and commissioning of Secured
Transaction Registry system has also been
completed. The system is expected to go
into operation by the 3rd Quarter of 071/072.
While developing the Registry System, Bureau
ensured that the system was simple and easy
to use for any user logging into the system for
the registration of notices and searches. The
access of the service is web based and can

be accessed by any user from any parts of the
country where internet service is available.

Operation of MF Bureau will pose many new
challenges to the Bureau in the coming months.
Against the prevailing issues of data quality, IT
capability and the readiness of the MF insti-
tutions to join the bureau still remain, Kendra
believes that all the microfinance institutions
will enhance their data quality and strengthen
their MIS system & IT capability in due course of
time and join the bureau sooner or later. Tariff
issue which is the major concern for the MF
institutions will be resolved in due course of
time during Pilot run period. A committee will
be formed to set up the tariff which will deter-
mine the tariff based on the cost of the system
operation and Hit patterns of the service.

Kendra intends to organize series of trainings,
seminars and talk programs to educate the
microfinance institutions about the importance
of the bureau and how it is going to help themin
making better lending decisions. The program
will also focus on how to maintain their data
quality and improve on the IT system in order to
effectively interface with the bureau’s system.

Bureau expects that at the initial phase of
the service implementation, the use of STR
service will be limited to only banking and the
government sectors. As the awareness grows
about its use and benefits, the service will pick
up its momentum and the subscriber base
will slowly increase. In order to generate the
awareness about the service, bureau plans to
conduct various levels of awareness programs
to educate the potential users about the service
and its benefits.

At the end, | would like to thank to all the
member banks and financial institutions for
their continued support to the Bureau and for
their regular suggestions and feedbacks on
our services. This always helps us to improve
further on our services and provide better
quality services to them. | also extend my deep
appreciation to the company’s Board of Director
for their guidance and support to us all the time
during the period. At the end, | would like to
thank all my colleagues of this company who
supported me all the way to take this company

to new heights.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTED BY THE CHAIRMAN
AT 10™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the company, I would like to welcome you
all to this 10th Annual General Meeting of Karja Suchana Kendra Limited.

Please let me have this opportunity to take over this floor to brief you about the
operational and financial performance of the company in the year 070/071, its
projected accomplishments, ongoing activities, status of the forthcoming new
projects and various other issues related with the delivery of credit information
services to the member banks and financial institutions of the country.

The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the Fiscal
Year 070/071 and report of the Board of Directors are hereby presented to you for
the required discussions and approval.

REVIEW OF LAST YEAR OPERATION

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the year under the review, the Kendra put all its efforts to implement the new Commercial Credit Bureau System
and Microfinance Credit Bureau System and bring them into service as soon as possible. The Kendra was totally engaged
in the installation and commissioning of Application Software, Hardware, 3rd Party software and other Accessories needed
to implement the system. Kendra was also engaged in conducting trainings, talk programs and various levels of interaction
programs with the representatives of the Banks and Financial institutions (BFIs) and Microfinance Institutions (MFIs) to
make them familiar with the new systems and seek suggestions from them to bring more quality on the systems developed.

During the mid of the fiscal year, Kendra was entrusted with the additional responsibility of implementing the Secured
Transaction Registry (STR) system. After many years of uncertainties regarding its implementation, Ministry of Finance finally
empowered Kendra to implement and operate the system on its own remaining within the confines of and abiding by the
Secured Transaction Registry Act of the country. During the period, Kendra completed all the pre-implementation activities
(installation & commissioning) related with the operation of the service.
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Apart from the new systems, Kendra made all its efforts to maintain the existing system at its best level and provide unin-
terrupted, secured and best quality service to its users.

@ Summary of the operational activities

To put in an encapsulated form, the major operationalt highlights of the year 070/071 were as follows:

the installation and commissioning
of new Commercial Bureau has been
completed. The bureau is in the
process of collecting the test data
from the Pilot member Banks and
Financial institutions (BFIs) based
on the new Input File Format and
verifying the sanity of those incom-
ing data.

the installation and commissioning
of Microfinance Bureau has been
completed. The bureau is in the
process of collecting the test data
from Microfinance Institutions
based on the Input File Format
and verifying the sanity of those
incoming data. Bureau so far has
been successful in collecting the
data from thirty Microfinance
institutions (MFIs).

the bureau has completed the
development of application software
for the implementation of Secured
Transaction Registry System. The
procurement and installation of
Hardware & other Accessories for
the system has also been completed.
The system is expected to start from
the 3" quarter of fiscal year 071/072.

the Bureau conducted many interac-
tion programs with the representa-
tives of the BFIs and MFIs during the
new software customization process
and conducted many trainings in
order to familiarize them with the
new systems.

Apart from the focus to introduce
new systems, the bureau strived
hard to maintain the existing
system at its best level. The service
was provided uninterrupted through

out the year. There were no service
breakdowns reported in the Primary
Site during the period and system
availability was 100 percent. The
disaster recovery site (DR Site) was
put on a warm standby mode to
prevent any breakdown in service
in case of any system failure in the
primary site.

Security of the data being the prime
concern, Kendra implemented very
stringent security measures to
cocoon the data from the external
threats. Because of this, no cases
of security breaches in data access,
transmission, storage and informa-
tion dissemination were reported
during the period. The physical
security of the Data Center was also
given the highest priority and was
monitored constantly to prevent
any unauthorized access into the
Data Center. Data Center was putin
round the clock surveillance mode.

There was the further improvement
in the response cycle time by 0.5
secs. The response cycle time (the
time elapsed between system
access and credit report generation)
was brought down from the pre-
vious year’s figure of 4 secs to 3.5
secs this year.

the Kendra further improved on
the searching algorithm by adding
few functional parameters.The new
searching logic was nearly 100%
effective and delivered almost
100% correct identifications of the
borrowers. No cases of incorrect
identification were reported during
the period.

the Bureau continuously moni-
tored the volume of data collected
through both online and off line
(FTP) system. The data transmission
through FTP server was found to be
easy, convenient and most secured
and no problems were reported by
the users during the period.

the bureau observed huge improve-
ment in the quality of the data
sent by the users. Very effective
validation rules and efficient data
sanity checks has attributed im-
mensely in improving the quality
of the incoming data. Apart from
this, the Match and Merge engines
also worked perfectly delivering the
correct merging of the individuals’
records without any defaults.

Kendra’s Help Desk remained very
efficient and effective during the
period in attending to and address-
ing the various issues of the users
related with the services extend-
ed by the bureau. All the users’
queries and complaints were time-
ly addressed and closed on time.
Kendra took regular feedbacks
from the users about the quality
of service rendered by the bureau
and improved on the services as per
the suggestions received.

Help desk service was further
strengthened by effective messag-
ing and emailing component which
brought huge efficiency in the
dissemination of information and
delivery of notices and announce-
ments to the banks and financial
institutions.



The banks & financial institutions
located even on remote regions of
country could access bureau ser-
vice easily. Though remote, bureau
delivered high quality service to the
users of the regions.

Bureau improved on the users’
capacity of the system and granted
additional “Users” to many banks
and financial institutions during
the period.

the bureau maintained its House
Keeping system in perfect order
during the period. There were no
any technical incidents reported
that affected the delivery of the
services. House keeping system
included daily schedules for

restarting and shutting down of the
servers, storing the processinglogs,
processed data files and rejected
data files in specific folders in
secured locations in the database
server and purging of these data
files on a periodic basis.

the system operations was effec-
tively supervised and monitored
through system logs. Any change
in events such as configuration
updates, system crashes, security
profile changes and any/all securi-
ty related events were monitored
through audit logs generated by the
system. Every activity performed by
a user was logged into the database.
Whenever a user was logged to the
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application, all the users operations
within the system including chang-
esin the database, transactions and
configuration details were logged in
the database.

the bureau fvurther improved on
the Graphical User Interface and
made it more accessible and user
friendly to manage entire bureau
configurations and settings related
to data processing.

the bureau also improved on the
billing and accounting system that
captured the number of enquiries
made by the users for the credit
reports. The improved system
gave correct statistics of the users’
accounts.

@ Statistics of the Credit Reports

The number of credit reports generated (Information Searches/Hits) increased by nearly 31% this year. The increase in
numbers could be attributed to stable economy, stable political climate, improving real state growth, increasing opportunities
for business investments and effective supervision by Central Bank. Apart from this, the other factors such as the improved
access to bureau’s service, quality of credit reports, affordable tariffs with various discount incentives and increasing awareness
about the benefits of information sharing has also led to the increase in number of “Hits”. The month wise generation of the
credit report is not uniform and shows uneven patterns.

Total
“Hits”

069/070 24,647 32,749 35,091 16,553 30,839 32,043 28,668 30,138 35,769 30,398 36,131 35,022

Sawan Bhadra Asoj Kartik Mangsir Poush Magh Falgun Chaitra Baisakh Jesth Asar

60,000
Total Searches
069/070 45,000
368,048
ceesesssesssnns 30,000
Total Searches
070/071
482,667

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 ]
Sawan Bhadra As'oj Kartik Ma'\tg Poush Ma;gh Fal,'gun Chaitra Baisakh Jes'tha Asadh

- 069/070 O 070/071

In the month of Jestha, the subscriptions have increased sharply where as in the months of Poush, Falgun, Chaitra and Baisakh it shows average subscriptions.
But the month wise generation of credit reports in 070/071 shows similar trend as that in year 069/070 where the “peak & dip” patterns of both the years are
virtually similar. Similarly, there has been a month wise increase of 9,550 Hits in year 070/071 as compared to the year 069/070.
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As the previous years, Commercial Banks generated highest number of credit reports followed by Regional Development
Banks, National Development Banks and Finance Companies. Co-operatives and others were the lowest users of the service.
The Commercial Banks generated nearly 68% of the total Credit Reports where as National Development Banks, Regional
Development Banks and Finance Companies generated 12.6%, 12.3% and 7% respectively. Co-operatives and others generated
only 0.3% of the total.

Credit
Reports Percentage

Categories of Lending Institutions of the Total

070/071
0.3%

Commercial Banks (CB) 327,096 67.8% 7%
.............................................................................................. 12.3%

Development Banks/National (NDB) 60,940 12.6% 12.6%

Development Banks/Regional (RDB) 59,284 12.3%
.............................................................................................. 67.8%

Finance Companies (FC) 33,774 7%

Co-operatives and Others (CO) 1,573 0.3%

CB ( 'NDB @RDB @FC co

Total Searches 482,667

Number of Credit
% of the Total

i i ituti Reports 9
Categories of Lending Institutions 1% Increments % Increments Increments
069/070 070/071
Commercial Banks (CB) 248,661 327,096 78,435 31.5% 68.4%
Development Banks/National (NDB) 37,676 60,940 23,264 61.7% 20.3%
Development Banks/Regional (RDB) 45,054 59,284 14,230 31.6% 12.4%
Finance Companies (FC) 35,564 33,774 -1,790 -5% -1.52%
Co-operatives and Others (CO) 1,093 1,573 480 44% 0.42

Total Credit Reports 368,048 482,667 114,619

The graph shows that as compared to the year
500.000 069/070, the Commercial Banks had the largest
’ increment in the number of credit reports gen-

erated (+78,435) followed by National Develop-
375,000 ment Banks (+23,264), Regional Development
Banks (+14,230) and Co-operatives (+480). The
250,000 ! number of credit reports generated by the finance
companies decreased by 1,790 reports in the year
Increments 070/071. Percentage wise, National Develop-
] ment had the largest increments followed by
Co-operatives, Regional Development Banks and

0 } } I Commercial Banks.
069/070 070/071

125,000 | —




The distribution of credit report generation among different
types lending agencies differed quite widely. The Hits of all
types of lending institutions were examined and plotted. It
was found that some finance companies generated more Hits
than Development Banks whereas some Development Banks
generated more Hits than Commercial Banks. Some Finance
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companies were found to be more active and generated Hits
even more than Commercial Banks. If “Hits” are any indication
of the lending volumes of the institutions, it shows a very
alarming trend that some commercial banks doing extremely
poor business where as some lower tier financial companies
doing quite good business.

30000
The graph shows that the number of credit
reports (Hits) generated by the commercial
22500 banks varied between twenty eight thousands
credit reports to two thousands credit reports.
There were fifteen banks which generated more
15000 | | than ten thousands credit reports where as the
remaining generated between five thousands to
ten thousands reports except one bank which
7500 - R BB R _m B 8 B S8 REBRN B generated less than five thousands reports. The
average number of reports generated by the
commercial banks in the year was ten thou-
0 EEEETEEESEESESE®SEN®NSNES®N®SH;:; —r———1——1—  Sands nine hundred reports.
(Credit Reports generated by the Commercial Banks; Total number of CB 30)
6000
4500
Some National Development Banks (NDBs) gen-
erated as high as five thousands credit reports
00 & B T BB B where as some generated as low as ninety five
credit reports. Altogether fifteen NDBs generated
more than two thousands credit reports. The
50 A B8 BT R EREE B R E R average number of credit reports generated by
the National Development Banks in the year was
two thousands nine hundred reports.
° -+ttt

(Credit Reports generated by National Development Banks; Total number of NDB 21)

4000

3000

2000 HH H

Some Regional Development Banks (RDBs) did
quite good and generated as high as three thou-
= sands five hundred credit reports where as some

100 }—"AH ittt 14—t

did quite poorly and generated only two credit
reports. Altogether twenty four RDBs generated
more than one thousand credit reports where as
many others generated between five hundred to
one thousand reports. There were also few RDBs
which generated less than five hundred reports.

(Information Searching “Hits” by Regional Development Banks; Total number of RDB 62)
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4000

3000 —

Some Finance Companies were quite aggressive
2000 — — and generated as high as three thousands credit
reports where as some did extremely poor and
generated only one credit report in the year.

1000 ] [ Nearly thirty three finance companies generated
below five hundred reports. The average credit
report generated by the finance companies in the

0

rrrrrrrtrrrtrrtrrtrrtrtrtrrrtrrtrrrrrrtrrrrrrrrrrirrrtrrtirrrrrrrri yearwasnearlysixhundredfortyreports.

(Information Searching “Hits” by Finance Companies; Total number of FC 53)

30000
Commercial Banks
22500
15000 | |
National Regional Finance
Development Development Companies
Banks Banks
7500  fi The graph encapsulates all the above graphs
and compares the credit reports generated
‘HI‘I“ ih | | | | by all four categories of banks and financial
0 . . . " W libly i . Ll . institutions.

(Comparison of number of Credit Reports generated by the Lending Agencies)

There has been steady growth of credit report subscriptions since the last couple of years. The graph below shows the
yearly statistics of the increments.

070/071 069/070 068/069 067/068 066/067 065/066

F(Ilbl,lt:gies/“Hits" 482,667 368,048 262,238 177,596 123,236 85,175

Yearly
Increments

500000 482667

368048

375000

262238
250000

177596

125000 123236

2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071

(Annual Increment of the Credit Reports Subscription)



@ Statistics of the Borrowers’ Records

The borrowers’ records which indicate the total number of records of the borrowers
who were extended the loans of Rs. 1 million and above facilities by the banks and
financial institutions increased by 40.7% from 137,774 in year 069/070 to 193,915
in the year 070/071. The increase in borrowers’ records was because of increase in
lending of the banks and financial institutions, ease in loading of the borrowers”
records online through bureau’s system, the improved MIS system of lending insti-
tutions and the lowering of collection threshold of credit facilities to Rs. 1 million.

Total borrowers’ records include the records of both institutional as well as consumer
records. Till the year 069/070, the total numbers of individual and institutional
borrowers registered in bureau were 70,885 and 66,889 respectively where as they
increased to 108,206 and 85,709 respectively in the year 070/071. Thus there was
the increment of nearly 52.6% in individual borrowers and nearly 28.1% in the
institutional borrowers leading to the total borrowers’ records of 193,915 by the
end of the year 070/071.

Borrowers’ records distribution shows similar pattern as that of credit reports. As
per the statistics available with the Kendra till the year-end, Commercial banks
have the largest number of borrowers’ records followed by Finance Companies
and National & Regional Development Banks.

Categories of Lending Institutions N;;EEgSOf PercenTt‘gtg; il
Commercial Banks (CB) 132,650 68.4%
. Development Bank s/Natlonal (NDB) ................... 2 0,628 ................. 10 64% .........
. Development Bank s/Reg]onal (RDB) .................... 18,286 ................... 9 43% .........
. Fm ance CO mp am es (Fc) .................................. 2 2,091 ................... 1 14% .........
. Coo peratlves and Others (co ) ............................. 260 .................. 0 13% .........
Total Searches 193,915 100%

Commercial Banks have 68.4% of the total records where as Finance Companies,
National Development Banks and Regional Development Banks have 11.4%, 10.6%
and 9.43% respectively of the total records. The Co-operative and others have the
lowest number of records (0.13%).

Number of Records %

% of Total
Incre-
ments

Categories of Lending

Institutions Incre-

069/070 070/071 ment

Commercial Banks (CB) 95,230 132,650 37,420 39.3% 66.6%
Development Banks/ o o

National (NDB) 13,951 20,628 6,677 47.9% 11.9%
Development Banks/ o o

Regional (RDE) 10,274 18,286 8,012 78% 14.3%
gg;‘nce Companies 18,172 22,091 3919  21.6% 7%
Co-operatives and 147 260 113 76.9% 0.002%

Others (CO)

Total Borrowers Records 40.7%

137,774

193,915 56,141
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069/070

Individual ©
Institutional @

85,709

108,206
070/071

Individual
Institutional @

- 0.13%
11.4%

9.43%

10.64%

68.4%

Ocs

NDB @RDB @ FC co

Commercial Banks had the largest increments

of records (+37,420) in the year followed by
Regional Development Banks (+8,012), National
Development Banks (+6,677), Finance compa-
nies (+3,919) and Co-operatives (+113). Out of
the total increments, CBs occupied 66.6% of the
total increments where as Regional Development
Banks, National Development Banks and Finance
companies occupied 14.3%, 11.9% and 7%
respectively of the total increments.

200,000
100,000 l
Increments
50,000 - ] = B
L L ]
T 1

069/070 = 070/71

CB @NDB @RDB FC co



Board of Directors Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

@ Statistics of the Blacklisted Borrowers

Blacklist Borrowers increased by 550
borrowers in 070/071. Total of 738 bor-
rowers were admitted in the black list
where as 188 borrowers were de-listed
from the Blacklist giving rise to total

increment of 550 borrowers. This
increase could be attributed to the ef-
fective supervision by the Central Bank
of all the default loans of the Banks &
Financial institutions (BFIs) and strict

measures imposed by the Bank in case
of BFIs failing to report to the Bureau of
the blacklist borrowers on the prescribed

schedule as dictated by NRB Directive.

Statistics of the Blacklisted Borrowers
Till

062/063 063/064 064/065 065/066 066/067 067/068 068/069 069/070  070/071
Added in Blacklist 2,909 430 82 55 171 263 353 690 738
Removed from 991 113 146 133 112 131 121 147 188
Blacklist
Total Borrowers in
Blacklist at theend 1,918 2,235 2,171 2,093 2,152 2,284 2,516 3,059 3,609
of Fiscal Year
3800 3609
2850 2516
2235 2171 2152
1918 2093
1900
950

2063

2064 2065 2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071

(Number of Blacklist Borrowers in CIB Database)

LIST
738

BAD DEBT

Rs.4,372

Crore

069/070 070/071

3,059

BLACK LIST
BORROWERS

DE-LIST

188

3,609

BLACK LIST
BORROWERS

The increase in Blacklist borrowers increased the bad debt amount by Rs. 404 crore. The bad debt amount
increased from previous year’s figure of Rs. 3,968 crore to Rs. 4,372 crore this year.




@ Corporate Governance

The Governing body of the company is
the Board of Directors who is entrusted
with the responsibility of overseeing the
company’s operations on behalf of the
shareholders and ensuring its prosper-
ity by collectively directing its affairs,
whilst meeting appropriate interests
of its shareholders and stakeholders.
The company adopts best governance
practices and strives to satisfy legiti-
mate claims of all stakeholders ensur-
ing transparency and timely financial
reporting.

The Board of Directors of the company
have committed themselves to ensure
that there is effective overseeing of

@ Human Resource

We believe that effective Human
Resource Management enables em-
ployees to contribute effectively and
productively to the overall accom-
plishment of the company’s goals and
objectives. We follow to a more open,
flexible and caring management style
so that the staffs can be motivated to
deliver their best to support company’s
objectives. We have established a very
safe, healthy and happy workplace and
have built a superior platform for the
employees to deliver their best. We
believe in openness and transparen-
cy and communicate & discuss with
employees in open manner. We ensure
that employees are well informed on
matters concerning them and their
job. Formal and informal channels
are also employed in communication
with employees with an appropriate

the Bureau operations and that all
such business affairs of the Bureau
are conducted adhering to the highest
standards of good governance, embrac-
ing established best practices.

Board appoints CEO for the manage-
ment of the company and for imple-
menting policies, guidelines, strategies
as approved by the Board. The CEO is
supported by the various committees
formed by the Board and chaired by its
non-executive directors.

Board appoints Audit Committee,
Recruitment Committee and the
Internal Auditor. The Statutory
Auditor is appointed by the decision of

two-way feedback mechanism. We
recognize the employee’s contributions
and achievements and reward them
accordingly based on their performanc-
es. We train the employees through
various programs and motivate them
to learn multiple skills.

All the staffs in the key positions
are trained and have many years of
experience in their respective fields.
We have created a small but highly
energetic team with smartest people.
We believe in developing a small but
highly balanced workforce that match-
es with workloads. No redundancy in
workforce is allowed. We are focused
to invest in their continuous training
and development, providing them with
opportunities for both personal and
professional enhancement.
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the shareholders through the Annual
General Meeting of the company.

The company is subject to and fully
complies with, all but not limited to, the
Company’s Act 2063, Company’s Articles
of Association, regulatory requirements
of Banks and Financial Institutions Act
2063, Directives and Circulars issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank and various guide-
lines issued by the Government of Nepal
related with the credit bureau.

The company’s HR policy is guided
by the company’s “Karmachari Sewa
Biniyamawali 2064” and is based on
best international practices in human
resource development and manage-
ment. As per the Biniyamawali, the
Kendra maintains a policy of giving
fair consideration to the applications
for employment to all the applicants
with due regard to their abilities and
aptitude. The Kendra’s policy prohibits
discrimination based on genders, caste
& creed, religion etc. in the recruitment,
training and career development of its
employees.
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@ Organization Structure

PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

: SAEME RECRUITMENT COMMITTEE

R AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

o
CHAIRMAN & BOARD OF DIRECTORS

v

ICT OPERATION ACCOUNT & ADMIN. BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Being a small company, we have a very simple and flat organization structure with fewer management levels with each level
controlling broader area of activities. Fewer layers means fewer approvals in decision making, so decisions can be made faster
and the company can respond more quickly to new ideas. It leads to better and more frequent communication among all the
employees resulting in better understanding of company’s operational goals and issues.

Employees are empowered and are expected to take responsibility for a range of decisions in their daily routines. We offer
more opportunities for employees to excel while promoting the larger business vision. Since more employees are on a level
playing field, more responsibility is placed on each individual creating a situation where innovative and collaborative culture
thrives. By giving every one in a company an equal voice in submitting new ideas and feedback on operational processes, we
tend to discover new ideas that lead to competitive success.

Management

Management is run by the CEO and he
is in charge of the bureau. CEO has the
specific responsibilities as entrusted
by the Board of Directors and reports
to the Board on a regular basis. CEO
oversees the complete operation of
the bureau that includes operations,
marketing, strategy, financing, creation
of company culture, human resource,
hiring, firing, compliance with safety

regulation, sales, public relations etc.
In short, his responsibilities include
managing the overall operation and
resource of the company, making
major corporate decisions, developing
and implementing high level strategies,
developing planning recommendations
to the Board and acting as the point of
communication between the Board and
the corporate operations.

CEO is supported by the executives
who report to him regularly on vari-
ous issues. Being a flat structure, CEO
is approached by employees of all the
levels and report to him issues and
problems. Because of the teamwork
and collaborative culture, Bureau has
managed to implement three national
level projects within the short span of
few years.



@ The Board and the Committees

The Directors of the Board are elected
from among the promoter shareholders
from Annual General Meeting of the
company in every four years. The Board
is composed of seven members- four
from Commercial Banks (CB), one each
from Finance Company (FC), Develop-
ment Bank (DB) and Nepal Rastra Bank
(NRB). The number of representation in
the Board from each category is based
on the distribution of shares among the
categories. Commercial Banks holds 65%
stake and has four representations,

and has one representation, Finance
Companies holds 15% stake and has
one representation and Nepal Rastra
Bank holds 10% stake and has one
representation.

The current Board of Directors meets all
the Qualification Criteria as mentioned
in the Article 89 of the Company Act
2063 of the country. All of them possess
needed skills, expertise and experience
to make required policy decisions and
guide the company to make it more
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competitive and efficient. The tenure
of the Board of Directors is for four years.
The term of office of a Director appoint-
ed to the office of any director which has
fallen vacant before the expiry of his/her
term of office shall be the only remain-
der of the tenure of office of that director
whose office has so fallen vacant and
whose place one is appointed. In such
cases, the Board has the right to select
new member from among the promoter
shareholders for the remaining period
of his/her incumbency.

Development Banks holds 10% stake

a. Changes in the Board of Directors

There we no changes in the Board of Directors during the period.

b. Board Meetings

There were altogether ten (10) Board meetings held under the Chairmanship of Mr. Tej Bahadur Budhathoki during the period under
the review. The numbers of the attendance of the Board members in the Board meetings were as follows:

No. of
Meetings held
During Tenure

% of
Attendance

Meetings

Representation from Attended

Mr. Tej Bahadur Budhathoki

1. . Agriculture Development Bank Ltd. 10 10 100%
Chairman

9 Mr. Purna Bahadur Khatri Nepal Rastra Bank 10 8 80%
Director

3, MrAjayShrestha Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 10 9 90%
Director

4. Mr. Jyot Prakash Pandey Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 10 6 60%
Director

5 Mr. Tulasi Ram Gautam Machhapuchhre Bank 10 3 80%
Director

6 Mr. Bhusan Rana Yeti Development Bank 10 3 30%
Director

7. Mr. Rajendra Man Shakya Synergy Finance Limited 10 10 100%

Director

*Mr. Bhusan Rana could not attend many meetings due to health reasons

As per the Company’s Niyamawali 2068, Board must convene for the Board meeting at least six times in a year provided however that
the interval between any two meetings shall not exceed three months. No meeting of the Board shall be held unless it is attended
by at least fifty one percent of the total number of directors of the company.
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c. Current Board Members

Board elected Mr. Tulasi Ram Gautam as the new Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the company for the period till
the end of the current tenure of the Board. He replaced the
incumbent Chairman Mr. Tej Bahadur Budhathoki who left
the Board after he resigned from the CEO of the Agriculture
Development Bank. Similarly Mr. Bhusan Rana also left the
Board after he resigned from the CEO of the Yeti Development
Bank.

d. Board of Directors Disclosure

MR. TULASI RAM GAUTAM
CHAIRMAN

Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited

Board ratified the name of Mr. Nara Bahadur Thapa, the Executive
Director of Nepal Rastra Bank, as the new member of the Board
in place of Mr. Purna Bahadur Kahatri who retired from the
Bank recently.

CEO

He has not been associated with any other institutions other than Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited.

MR. NARA BAHADUR THAPA
Director

Nepal Rastra Bank

Director

He has not been associated with any institutions other than Nepal Rastra Bank.

MR. AJAY SHRESTHA
Director

Bank of Kathmandu
Beed-BOK Venture Limited
Nepal Bankers Association

MR. JYOTI PRAKASH PANDEY
Director

Nepal Investment Bank Limited
NIBL Capital Markets Limited
Member, Board of Directors

MR. RAJENDRA MAN SHAKYA
Director

Synergy Finance Limited

Nepal Finance Companies Association
FNCCI Commodities Council

Nepal Red Cross Society

Nepal Baudhha Parishad

CEO
Chairman
Executive Member

CEO
Chairman
Nepal Clearing House Limited

CEO

President

Executive Member

Life Member & Advisor
Life Member



e. Audit Committee

Board of Directors forms the Audit Com-
mittee and appoints its three members.
The audit committee is chaired by a
non-executive director of the Board. All
the members of the committee have
many years of experience and expertise
in the field. The committee oversees,

on behalf of the Board, the financial
reporting controls implemented by
the management and the integrity of
the published financial information.
In general, the audit committee’s role
includes the oversight of financial
reporting, the monitoring of accounting
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policies, the oversight of any external
auditors, regulatory compliance, for-
mulation of accounting policy and the
discussion of risk management policies
with management. It also reviews and
supervises the compliance of auditor
towards standards, regulations etc.

There were altogether four (4) audit committee meetings held during the period. Audit committee met each quarter to discuss
on the audit reports submitted by the internal auditors. There were four internal audit reports submitted to the audit committee.

Name Number of Meetings Held Number of Meetings % of
During the Tenure Attended Attendance
1.  Rajendra Man Shakya, Chairman 4 4 100%
2 ..... TulaSIRamGaUtam ............................................ 4 ....................................... 4 100% ..........
3PumaChltraPradhan ......................................... 4 ....................................... 4 100% ..........

f. Recruitment Committee

Ajay Shrestha, Board Director Chairman
CEO Member
HR/Admin Officer Member

Since there were no new recruitments and promotions of the permanent staffs made during the period, there were no any
meetings held of the recruitment committee.

g. Expenses Incurred on Committees

Expenses on Committees

. Number of
Committee :
Meetings Meeting Allowance  Other Expenses
1.  Board Meetings 10 108,000 15,500 123,500
2 Audit Committee Meetings 4 12,000 2,807 14,807

h. Disclosures

Adopting accepted best practices, Kendra discloses relevant information, both financial and non-financial, to its shareholders
through the Annual Report. The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards
and the generally accepted accounting principles.
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i. Compliance Report

The Directors to the best of their knowledge confirm that all taxes and duties payable by the Bureau as well as contributions,
levies and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Bureau and all other statutory dues, as were due
as at the Balance Sheet Date, have been paid or provided for in the Financial Statements.

Risk Factors Disclosures

It is necessary that the Bureau has a strong and effective risk management structure in which risks are identified, analyzed,
communicated, mitigated and managed across the company and across all functions. The Bureau recognizes that risk man-
agement is an integral part of sound management practice and good corporate governance as it improves the decision-making
and enhances outcomes and accountabilities. The management of Bureau is committed to risk management practices across
its business at all times working diligently to follow highest standards and benchmarks as appropriate. The risk management
plans are regularly reviewed to ensure that they accurately reflect current potential risks of the bureau’s business.

MAINTENANCE OF DATA SECRECY (TECHNOLOGY RISK])
RISKS MITIGATION STRATEGIES

The Bureau has in its possession a great
deal of sensitive and confidential infor-
mation relating to the borrowers. While
such confidential information is stored in
safe servers inside the Data center, there
is always risk of unauthorized access of
the data from the external world. The
unauthorized access can be online or
physical access to the Data Center.

In short, the risks include—but not lim-
ited to—piracy of database and server
contents, access, modification or destruc-
tion of data, disclosure and exposure of
information to unauthorized individuals,
hardware vandalism, software piracy, sys-
tem software and network sabotage etc.
Should such event occur, it will tarnish
the image of the Bureau. As confidenti-
ality is paramount, maintaining it at the
highestlevel is a constant challenge that
must be met to ensure credibility & trust.

The Bureau has employed very robust IT security infrastructure
and various layers of system security that could circumvent any
external threats. Data Center is fully protected & equipped with
access control mechanisms and safety systems. The system has
been completely cocooned from external world and has multiple
layers of security zones that will have restricted access and can be
accessed only through the defined logical rules. Bureau ensures
efficiency in IT systems and maximum security in maintaining
its database.

The data from the member institutions come in encrypted
form. All three layers (Network, Application and Web) of security
mechanisms are implemented. Member institutions access the
Bureau for information strictly for permissible purposes only. Only
authorized member users with approved User ID and Password
can access the data.

Bureau ensures that IT staffs are fully aware with the information
confidentiality policy and follow them strictly. Only those staffs
“who need to know” are provided with access privileges which
will be revoked in a timely manner when no longer warranted.
Bureau has employed trained staffs for information security who
have many years of experience in the field and are capable of
dealing with any types of system security problems.

Data Center is subjected to round the clock surveillance and is
equipped with highly advanced surveillance tools to monitor the
activities inside the Data Center. Unauthorized admission to Data
Center is strictly prohibited.



RISKS MITIGATION STRATEGIES

Decreasing banking business leads to
decline in credit information enquiries
which lead to reduced revenue for the
bureau. Economy or market down turns
or poor state of the banking business
adversely impacts the bureau’s growth
potential. Uncertainties in the banking
business make it difficult to forecast
future levels of bureau’s income and
earning potentials.
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Bureau is in a process of diversifying its product portfolio in near
future. Apart from credit report, it plans to pull out various kinds
of value added products and services such as credit bureau score,
portfolio management, application processing and fraud control
etc once the bureau’s data gets matured. This additional range of
products generates further revenue for the bureau which more
than compensates for any fluctuations in revenue from the credit
report sales.

7

OPERATIONAL RISK
m RISKS MITIGATION STRATEGIES

Because of the lack of any reliable instru-
ment for correctly identifying the bor-
rower, credit bureau is always exposed
to the risks of incorrect borrower iden-
tification and profile matching. Coupled
with this, many financial institutions still
have poor and inadequate information
about the borrowers which makes it fur-
ther difficult for the bureau to correctly
identify the borrowers. Wrong identifica-
tion leads to wrong credit report which
further leads to poor lending decisions
by the lending agencies incurring huge
losses to them. This may have adverse
impact on the credibility of the bureau.

Irregular & unreliable commercial power
supply and longload shedding hours in
the country may pose serious problem
for the bureau to provide uninterrupted
credit bureau services to the users. Bu-
reau may risk of losing the confidence
of the users if it fails to provide reliable
and uninterrupted service to them as
required.

Bureau has developed a very efficient and effective “Identification
Algorithm” that has helped to correctly identify the borrowers. The
algorithm is based on borrower’s personal identification information
and three generation information. The Bureau has taken plenty of
technical measures that null the wrong identifications.

Bureau is equally focused to improve the quality of the data and
has introduced strong validation rules to check the sanity of data.
All the data that do not meet the required quality standards are
rejected and sent to the users for the correction. Data quality of the
borrowers is maintained at highest level so that the “identification
algorithm” functions properly and gives the correct Hits. So far the
algorithm has generated 100% correct hits of the borrowers and no
wrong identifications are reported.

Bureau has taken all the measures possible to run the system without
any service interruption. The system is equipped with redundant
power supplies (UPS, Batteries, Generator) that are sufficient to
withstand the current power requirements of the system during
load shedding hours.

In case of service breaks down in Primary Site due to power or some
other Force Majeure reasons, Bureau can provide its service through
its Disaster Recovery Site (DR Site) located in National Information
Technology Center (NITC) in Singh Durbar. The system is in warm-
stand by mode and can be put into service immediately. NITC is
equipped with 24x7x365 uninterrupted power supply system.
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Risk of Loss or damage to the facility All our Data Center equipments and infrastructures have been safe-
and equipment due to fire, earthquake guarded with adequate insurance coverage.
or other reasons.

The Bureau motivates its employees by providing them the trainings,
Risk of losing IT talents. attractive remuneration packages, incentive schemes and other benefits
based on their performance and contribution made to the company.

FINANCIAL RISK

Bureau has sufficient funds in the form of financial assets, receivables,
cash and bank balance, short term deposits and investment incomes
to pay back the payables.

Risk that arises because of financial
liabilities of the company in terms of

debt, trade and other payables. The costs incurred for the procurement of Hardware & 3rd Party software

for the implementation of MF bureau was borne by the Grant received
from the Asian Development Bank. Thus there are no any financial
liabilities for the bureau to pay back the cost.

Interest Rate Risk that arises because

the fair value of future cash flows of a Interest rate risk may not pose serious problem for the bureau since
financial instrument will fluctuate be- interest income is not the core income and has only marginal effect
cause of changes in market interest rates. on bureau’s total income.

Subsequently that future proceeds have
to be reinvested at lower interest rates.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty
will not meet its obligations under a Since the customers of the Bureau are all banks & financial institu-

financial instrument or customer tions, it is exposed to minimum credit risk.
contract, leading to a financial loss.
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@ Issues and Problems affecting the Service of the Bureau

DATA QUALITY REPORTING AND UPDATES

SOLUTION STRATEGIES

ISSUES & PROBLEMS

The effectiveness of the credit information
bureau largely depends on the quality of
data stored in it. In order to make the
credit report more inclusive, informative
& reliable, the collection of correct and
current data from the source is necessary.

Bureau is moving very aggressively in this regard and has been conduct-
ing many interaction programs and discussion sessions with the data
providers regarding the quality of the data and its timely submissions.

Many Banks have already started upgrading their MIS system and
installing required system software to transfer the data on-line to
the bureau through the new system. Timeline/Cutoff date has already
been given to all the data providers so that their system must be
ready by the cut off date and they must submit the data through the
new Silver Blade system in a predefined file format as issued by the
Bureau since the cut off date onwards. Bureau has further improved
on the validation rules to improve on the quality of the data. No data
will be entered into the system unless it meets all the data standards
as set by the bureau and qualifies validation rules. Match and Merge
engines have been further strengthened.

D

CREDIT REPORTING THRESHOLD

ISSUES & PROBLEMS

Collection of the borrowers’ records of
only Rs.1million and above facilities as
set by the Central’s banks regulations has
restricted the Bureau from collecting the
data from SME and small borrowers and
making its database more inclusive.

SOLUTION STRATEGIES

The issue has brought to the notice of Central Bank to wipe out the
collection threshold and allow the bureau to be more inclusive by
collecting all the borrowers’ data of the lending agencies irrespective
of any threshold. Central Bank is seriously working on it to bring down
the collection threshold.

Such practice and policy will enhance the growth of credit market,
decreases the probability of multiple lending, makes the credit report
more inclusive and is in conformity with the best international practices
in credit bureau operation. Apart from this, this practice shortens the
data maturity process and expedites the process of the development
of value added products and services.

Wiping out the threshold is quite necessary for the growth of the
bureau, credit market and the economy of the country as a whole.
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REGULATORY PROVISIONS

ISSUES & PROBLEMS SOLUTION STRATEGIES

Bureau should be empowered through regulatory provisions to
suspend the service of the data providers in case of delayed or inaccurate
submissions. Strong regulatory measures such as suspension of service
and membership have to be imposed to enforce data providers to oblige
by the principles of information sharing.

Possibility of inaccurate and delayed
information due to the lack of effective
regulatory framework. Existing punitive
measures as mentioned in the NRB Direc-
tive is not enough to enforce data providers
to submit the data on time. The bureau has submitted the request to the Central Bank regarding

the same.

@ Challenges of New Systems Operation

STRATEGIES

The bureau intends to focus first all the “D” class financial institutions

CHALLENGES

regulated by the Nepal Rastra Bank (Microfinance Development Banks
& Financial Intermediaries) in the initial phase of its operation (Phase I/
Year 1). This will be followed by the penetration of services in Kathmandu
Valley in Phase II/Year 2, Regional Centers & Towns in Phase III/Year3
and all across the country in Phase IV/Year 4 & 5.

The operation of Microfinance Bureau
will pose a huge challenge for the Bureau.
Many microfinance institutions suffer
from inaccurate & incomplete data, poor
IT capability, unskilled staffs and lack of
awareness about the bureau which may
make the operation of the MF Bureau very
difficult. Challenge also exists in setting
up a reasonable tariff that is not only
affordable to the MFIs but also makes the
bureau sustainable.

The system will be put into Pilot Run initially. The Bureau will study the
“Hit Patterns” of the service during the Pilot Run period to determine
the tariff structure. A committee comprising of the members from
bureau, MF Associations, Ministry of Finance and the Central Bank
will be formed to set up the tariff structure which will determine the
tariff based on the cost of the system operation and Hit patterns of
the service.

Service delivery will be based on the Principle of Reciprocity. That is,
only those institutions who share the information and provide the
data will be our members and will be entitled to receive the credit
report from the bureau.

Bureau will conduct various kinds of awareness programs to make
MFIs aware about the benefits of joining the bureau, sharing the data
and making the information based lending decisions.
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COMMERCIAL BUREAU [NEW SILVER BLADE SYSTEM)

STRATEGIES

CHALLENGES

The complete switchover of service from
existing system to new system will pose
challenge for the bureau. Some data pro-
viders are still lagging behind in making
their MIS system ready to transfer the
data through new system. Unless all data
providers send the data through a new
system, the users will have to search both
the new and old systems to search the
borrowers’ information creating the lot
of inconveniences to the users.

Bureau has set the cutoff date for all the Banks and Financial Institutions
to make their MIS ready and send the Data through the new system.
At the same time, Bureau will complete the migration of the existing
data to the new system before the cut off date thus making the new
system fully equipped with both new and old data before the date.
This will solve the problem of using two systems for searching the
information to the users.

SECURED TRANSACTION REGISTRY (STR])

STRATEGIES

CHALLENGES

The effective implementation of Secured
Transaction Registry poses another chal-
lenge for the bureau. Since users are still
unaware about the STR service, its pene-
tration may take years before the service is
widely accepted and covered. Apart from
this, system has to be accessible, simple
and easy to use so that any person can
use it without any difficulty.

The bureau has developed a very simple yet user friendly system that
can be used by any one with simple computer skills. Since this is the
public notice and the information goes to the public domain, only
those information that are required as per the Act are given. No other
confidential information need to be filled. The objective of the STR
system is to register notice and set its priority.

Given the nature of the business, it can be assumed that its major users
at the initial phase will be banks and financial institutions. Bureau will
focus this segment in the initial phase.

@
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@ Major Action Plans for the Year 071/072

Long Term Business Focus and Action Plans

Kendra will put all its efforts to
operate the new Commercial Bu-
reau System (Silver Blade) by the
end 071/072. The existing credit
bureau system will be replaced
by new system and the service
will be provided through it. The
installation & commissioning of
the system have been completed
by now and the migration of the
data from the existing system to
the new system is expected to be
completed by the mid of 071/072.

Kendra aims to put the Microfi-
nance Credit Bureau service into
Pilot Run by the end of 071/072.
Immediately after the preliminary
checks of the test data from some
MFIs are completed, the bureau
will start collecting the data from
all other microfinance institu-
tions who will be willing to join
the bureau. All the incoming data
will be subjected to sanity checks

Organize the Business and its Pro-
cesses around a strong technology
base. Use Technology all across the
operations to increase efficiency
of service delivery, reduce costs of
operations, provide internal support
system and manage changes fast
etc.

Enhance the scope of operation by
collecting information from all other
sources (3" Party) such as utilities,
leasing companies, insurance com-
panies, investment funds and other
lending institutions. Enrich the
quality of data and bring maturity
in it by employing advanced data
processing techniques. Develop the
highly inclusive credit report based
on the information received from
various sources.

which may take few more months
to complete. By the end of the year,
the MF bureau will be made ready
for the Pilot Run.

Kendra plans to roll out the Secured
Transaction Registry service by
the 3% quarter of 071/072. All the
preliminary activities related with
the implementation of the service
have been completed. Kendra will
put the service into pilot mode for
some period to check the bugs and
errors before going “on live”.

Kendra aims to increase the fre-
quency of interaction programs with
the Bank and Financial institutions
(BFIs) in the year 071/072. Kendra
has planned to organize advanced
“system based” training to them in
order to make them familiar with
the system and better understand
the credit reports and other MIS
reports generated by the new

Bring out various kinds of value
added products and service on a
phase wise basis within 5 years
of the implementation of the new
commercial bureau system. This
includes the simple products like
credit scoring, check return and
identification verification in the ini-
tial years followed by more complex
products such as Fraud Prevention,
Marketing Services, Basel Il models
and Behavioral Statistics in later

years.

Expand microfinance bureau ser-
vice all across the country within
five years period and bring all the
microfinance institutions under its
umbrella. Develop various kinds of
products and services for microf-

system. Kendra will also conduct
the “system based trainings” to the
Microfinance Institutions that will
enable them to be familiar with the
system. Since Secure Transaction
Registry is a new service, Kendra
plans to implement a series of
awareness programs aiming at
potential users of the STR service.

Kendra will focus on capacity build-
ing of the IT & Operation staffs in
order to effectively operate the
new systems. The trainings will
be provided locally on the relevant
subjects by the technical experts
of the vendor. The staffs will be
sent abroad to vendor’s Training
Academy to have further advanced
trainings on the subjects. Apart from
the system based training, they will
be sent to attend the seminar and
talk programs overseas that will
help them learn new practices in
credit bureau operation.

inance institutions including the
delivery of the credit report service
through mobile phones.

Contribute in the growth of credit
market by making Secured Trans-
action Registry service available all
across the country. Generate wide
spread public awareness of the
service and bring all the potential
users under its umbrella.

Gain domain expertise and intro-
duce best international practices in
system security and data & service
quality. Establish Kendra in league
with other credit bureau operators
of the region in terms of service
standards.



@ Bureau’s Relations with its Stakeholders

The Kendra defines all of its users
(Banks & Financial Institutions),
shareholders, employees and exter-
nal agencies (Central Bank, Ministry
of Finance, Donor Agencies etc.) as
a whole as stakeholders and make
every effort to keep good relations
with them. To maintain good re-
lationships with these stakehold-
ers and further strengthen that
relationship, Kendra has always
maintains an effective two-way
communication with them.

Users: Kendra holds regular meet-
ings with the representatives of the
banks and financial institutions to
make them aware about the new
technologies introduced by the bu-
reau. It regularly imparts trainings
to them to make them familiar with
the system and capable of using the
services efficiently and effectively.

Shareholders: The Board of Direc-
tors always encourages dialogue
between the company and its
shareholders in order for the share-
holders to gain relevant insight into
the company's potential, operating
principles and policies, and in order
for the board of directors to be aware
of the shareholders' views, interests
and opinions on the company. Board
ensures that the shareholders are
fully aware about the business,
financial condition, and operating
performance and trends. Since
shareholders’good views and sug-
gestions are highly valuable, Board
aims to translate the shareholders’
good views and suggestions into
actions. The communications are
through annual general meeting,
fact books such as annual reports
and business reports, investor
information through rich website,
personal meetings and briefings
sessions etc.
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Employees: The Bureau has efficient
and effective in-house two-way
communication systems which
make the employees fully aware
about the business and the chang-
es, developments, plans, policies
implemented by the company.

External Agencies: The Kendra en-
sures that it makes good relations
and effective communications with
all the Associations of the financial
institutions (Nepal Bankers Asso-
ciation, Nepal Development Banks
Association, Nepal Finance Com-
panies Association, Microfinance
Development Banks Association),
Ministry of Finance, Central Bank,
government agencies and other
external agencies. Management
holds formal and informal meetings
regularly with the representatives
of those institutions and briefs
them about the current status of
the bureau.

Corporate Social Responsibility

* Eventhough a small company with a small turnover e During the period, Kendra donated four Quintals of rice to a
& profit, Kendra always intends to devote real time school named “Anaath Balasharm” located in the outskirts of
and money in environmental sustainability program, Budhanikanta, Kathmandu. The school is one of its kinds that
alternate energy and various social welfare initiatives admit students from the poor and underprivileged section
to benefit the community. The company has remained of the society and provide them free education, housing and
a keen supporter of green environment and is associ- food. The school is run by the contributions received from

ated with various environmental organizations that the various donors who provide the help and assistance to
are engaged in protecting and improving environment. the school in one form or other.

Bureau has turned itself into a paperless organization
with bare minimum consumption of papers through
automating all the operating activities and using en-
ergy efficient equipment thus saving time and cost
and creating a clean environment.
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FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Statement of Financial Position 069/070 070/071

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES

Share Capital 103,408,000 103,408,000
Resewe&5urp1us133,501_,583 .................................. 213'507,754 ..................
. Loa n/Funds ............................................................................................................. 23 1'369 ,g 13 ..................
Trade&OtherPayableS6’614,082 ..................................... 6’785,373 ..................
. Prov 1510ns ................................................................ 10 ’187 ,650 .................................... 12’794 ,729 ..................

Total Liabilities 253,711,320 567,866,169

ASSETS

Cash & Bank Balance 8,917,584 3,916,287
Investment5217,498’976 .................................. 265'743,277 ..................
Prepald' A dvan CeS’LoanS and D eposn S .......................... 10,561,964 .................................... 18'669,398 ..................
"[‘rade&OtherRecelvables9’252,582 .................................... 10’139,130 ..................
leedAssetS6,557,550 .................................. 268’392,073 ..................
Deferred Tax Assets ........................................................ 922,663 ...................................... 1006,004 ..................

Total Assets 253,711,320 567,866,169

Income Statement 069/070 070/071

INCOME

Service Charge 112,271,008 140,550,540
Interest ................................................................... 18,375’89 5 ..................................... 1 8,535,221 .................
ReglstratlonCharge ........................................................... 4 '0001’000 .................
Otherlncome ................................................................ 50'0002’500 .................

Total 130,700,903 159,089,261

EXPENDITURE

Operating Expenses 16,422,452 16,841,909
Non Operatm g Expenses ................................................. 374’749 ...................................................................
DepreClatlon1,839'552 ...................................... 1,505,339 .................
. Promswn for Bonus .................................................... 10 ,187’650 ..................................... 1 2,794’729 .................
PROFITBEFORETAX (PBT)101,876,500 .................................. 127’947’285 .................
. Prowsmn ForTaxan On ................................................ 25 ’5 17'659 ..................................... 3 2,195’149 .................
. Current Tax Expe nses ................................................. 25 ,762' 60 3 ..................................... 3 2,278’4 90 .................
Deferred Tax Expenses .................................................. (244’ 948) ........................................ (83,341) .................

Net Profit Transferred to Accumulated Profit 76,358,841 95,752,135
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Paid up share capital remained
same as previous year where as
Reserve & Surplus increased from
Rs. 133,501,588 to Rs. 213,507,754 in
070/071 because of the increments
in Accumulated Profit, General
Reserve and Deferred Tax Reserve.
There were no increments in Capital
Reserve which remained same as
previous year. Company transferred
20% of the net profit amounting to
Rs. 19,150,427 to General Reserve this
year. Company received the Grant
of the amount of Rs. 231,369,813
from the Asian Development Bank
under Rural Finance Sector Devel-
opment Cluster Program II for the
implementation of Microfinance
Credit Information Bureau System.
The amount was expensed for the
procurement of Hardware, 3% Party
Software and other Accessories

needed for the system.

Particulars 069/070 070/071 Increase (Rs.)
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
Paid Up Share Capital 103,408,000 103,408,000 0
Reserve & Sur p 1us ................. 133501588 .......... 213, 507’ 754 ............ 8 0006166 .
Loans / Funds ..................................... O .......... 231, 369’ 813 .......... 231369813 .
Total 236,909,588 548,285,567 311,375,979
Particulars 069/070 070/071 Increase (Rs.)
RESERVE & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve 7,299,257 7,299,257 0
. Gen eral Resew e ....................... 43363 635 ............ 62514,062 ........... 1 9 150427 .....
Accum UIated Proﬁt .................. 81916034 .. S 142688’432 ........... 6 0772398 .....
. DeferrEd TaXReserve ................... 922 663 ............. 1’006’004 ............... 8 3341 .....
Total 133,501,588 213,507,754 80,006,166

Company’s fixed assets increased manifolds during the year because of the addition of new infrastructures amounting
to Rs. 261,113,023 procured for the implementation of MF Bureau system. The new additions included Servers, Storage,
Network Security equipments, 3" Party Software and other Accessories for both Primary and DR Site. This also included

the cost to upgrade the Data Center
which was equipped with back up
power supplies, monitoring and
surveillance equipments and many
other advanced systems. The fixed
assets of the company are stated at
costless accumulated depreciation.

Investments in the form of interest
bearing long term and short term
deposits at different banks and
financial institutions amounted to
Rs. 265,743,277 in 070/071 as com-
pared to Rs. 217,498,976 in 069/070.
All the earnings after deducting the
essentials were invested in various
categories of financial institutions
that included commercial banks,
development banks and finance
companies.

The company also made the invest-
ments of Rs. 1 million in ICRA Nepal
in 068/069. Investments were made
looking at its potential to grow in
the future as the leading company

Particulars 069/070 070/071 Increase
FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets less Depreciation 6,557,550 7,279,050 721,500
(Regular)
Fixed Assets (Infrastructures for i 261,113,023 261,113,023
MF Bureau)

6,557,550 268,392,073 261,834,523
Particulars 069/070 070/071 Increase
INVESTMENTS

Fixed Deposits at different

Banks and Financial 214,900,000 262,800,000 47,900,000
Institutions
.. szens Investment Tru St ................. .1., 598, 976 .......... .1., 943’277 - 344301 .
.. ICRA Nep ;1 ................................... 1’ oo o, 000 .......... 1,000’000 .................... 0 .
Total 217,498,976 265,743,277 48,244,301

in the financial sector of the country. Bureau holds 5% stake in the company and
has one representation in its Board. As expected, ICRA is growing very fast and is
expected to disburse dividend from the coming fiscal years. Gratuity fund of the
employees which has been deposited in Citizens Investments Trust has also been
increased because of the annual additions in the fund.
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e Trade and Account Receivable which

includes Service Charge Receivable ey s i Ing&;ise

and Interest Accrued have increased TRADE & ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

by Rs. 559,243 and Rs. 327,304 re- -

spectively in the year 070/071. Serv1ce Charge ........................ 4'250’910 ........... 4’810'153 - 559'243 ......
Interest Accrued 5,001,672 5,328,976 327,304

e The service charge receivable against the total invoice bills decreased from 3.8% in 069/070 to 3.4% in 070/071. Company
has been making remarkable progress in service charge receivable which has been decreasing each year since last many
years. The reasons for this decrease can be attributed to the very tight credit policy, efficient and effective bills collection
mechanisms, highly focused and dedicated team, technology driven invoice generation and billing mechanisms etc.
Average collection period of the invoice bills has been reduced accordingly from 13.8 days to 12.5 days.

065/066 066/067 067/068 068/69 069/070 070/071

Total Invoice 29,554,400 42,167,870 64,378,968 8,2933,858 112,271,008 140,550,540
Sem Ce Charge Recewable 7850600 ......... 7083868 ......... 4 265269 N .4 003328 RS 4250910 .......... 4310153 ......
/Recewable ......................... 26 6/ U 168/ v .............. .6. 6/ .............. .4. 8/ ................ 3 8/ ................ 3 4/ ......

ACCOUNT RECEIVABLE AVERAGE COLLECTION PERIOD

188

(Days)

60.00% 200
51.50%
45.00% 150

37.80%

26.60%

30.00% 100

16.80%

15.00% . 50
6.60% 4.80% 3809 3.40% ' 8 125
0.00% } } } } ; 0 } } } } }

2064 2065 2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071 2064 2065 2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071
e Cash and Bank Balance has been payment of nearly Rs. 8.45 million made to the Application Software vendor
reduced nearly by 56% this year. as per the contractual terms and conditions signed between the vendor and the
Company’s cash management policy company. There were some marginal increments in other components apart

always ensures that all the revenues from the Advance Tax which increased by nearly 32% this year.

that are collected are immediately ) ) )
invested as deposits in Banks and e Trade and other Payables increased by only 2.6% this year. The staff’s Gratuity

Financial Institutions. The deposit Fund/Retirement Fund increased by Rs. 344,301 where as "others payable"

account has been reduced by nearly decreased by Rs. 369,255. The Provisions in the form of provision for Bonus

79% where as the operating account increased by 25.6%.
has been reduced by nearly 40% this
year. Only some portion of cash
required for regular expenses are Prepaid, Advances, 10,561,064 18,669,397 8,107,433

s . . Loans & Deposits
maintained in Operations Account. ..o 0000 S e e .

Particulars 069/070 070/071 Increase

° There was the heavy increment ...................................................................................................... .
in Pre-paid, Advances, Loans and
Deposits because of the advance
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e The service charge, the core revenue S. .
. .S Particulars 069/070 070/071 Changes

generating activity of the company, No.
increased by 25.2% where as the in- INCOME
crease in income from interest was S
virtually negligible. Though the in- 1 Service Charge 112,271,008 = 140,550,540 28,279,532 25.2%
vestment amount was increased by 2 Interest 18,375,895 = 18535221 159,326  0.86%
Rs.47,900,0001n 070/071, the IoWET L . i e ettt et ettt et
rate of interest of all the banks and 3 Registration Charge 4,000 1,000 (3,000) (75%)
ﬁnancial inStitutionS in the year af_ ............................................................................................................
fected adversely in the growth of the 4 OtherIncome 50,000 2,500 (47,500) (95%)
interest income. There was only one Total 130,700,903 159,089,261 28,388,358  21.7%

institution registered as a member
in the year resulting in the income

of Rs.1000 from the registration
fee. Other income of Rs. 2,500 was
recorded from the sale of the tender - In;il‘r’/e;St . Iniezi/eoSt
bid document for the construction
of additional rooms in the office.
The revenue from Operation thus
was increased by 21.7% this year to . .
e Operation e Operation
the total of Rs. 15.9 crore. 86% 88%

069/070 070/071

The revenue from the service charge contributed nearly 88% of the total operating revenue where as income from the interest
contributed only 12%. The increase in number of credit reports by 31% led to the increase in service charge by 25.2%. Though
the amount of investments in deposit accounts increased by 22%, the income from the interest increased by only 0.86%
because of the lower interest rate of the banks and financial institutions prevailing during the period. The average rate of
return of the investment portfolio decreased from 9.4% in 069/070 to 8.6% this year. The company has fixed deposit accounts
in 32 different financial institutions. (17 Commercial Banks, 8 Development Banks, 7 Finance Companies)

e The Commercial Banks were the largest contributor of the service charge revenue followed by Regional Development
Banks, National Development Banks and Finance Companies. The revenue from the Co-operatives and Others were
minimal. Service Charge from the “Others” included the revenue from the official Blacklist Report that bureau generated

for the borrower upon their request.

S. Names Revenue % of the
No. Generated Total
1. Commercial Banks (CB) 89,173,800 63.4%
"2 National Development Banks (NDB) 18193930 12.9%
"3 Regional Development Banks (RDB) 19553020 13.9%
.. 4 e Fmancecompames(FC) ........................ 12’481,265 ............... 9% .o
.. 5 e C Ooperatwes & Others ( CO) ..................... 114 8525 ............. O 8% .o
Total 140,550,540 100%

()CB (' NDB @RDB @FC co
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e Company maintained a very effective control on its operating expenses which
increased by only 2.5% this year. Salary and staff related expenses increased
by 5.9% where as Administrative expenses decreased by 2.2%. Staff related Admin
expenses constituted nearly 60.7%% of the total expenses where as adminis- 41.2%
trative expenses constituted nearly 39.3% of the total expenses. The average

expense utilization was 79% of the budgeted amount and no expense component

exceeded the budgeted figure. ;ag;f Related

Particulars 069/070 070/071 Changes

069/070
EXPENDITURE

e
1 Operating Expenses 16,422,452 | 16,841,909 419,457 2.5%

1a.  Salary, Allowance and dmi
other Staff related 9,655,010 = 10,222,564 567,554  5.9% Admin
Expenses 39.3%

1b.  Administrative Expenses 6,767,442 = 6,619,345 -148,097 -2.2%

........................................................................................................ Staff's Related
60.7%

e The new assets worth Rs. 2,226,841 were added in the fiscal year 070/071. The
total value of the fixed assets at the cost price amounted to Rs. 23,182,779 where
as the total depreciation of the fixed assets till the year-end amounted to Rs. 070/071
15,903,730. Thus the remaining fixed asset value of Rs. 7,279,050 was carried
forward for the next fiscal year. The depreciation expenses decreased by 18%
this year and amounted to Rs. 1,505,339.

The depreciation of the newly acquired fixed assets worth Rs. 261 million has not
been accounted for this year. Though deployed, system was not put into operation
during the period. Depreciation will be counted from the day the system will be
put into commercial use in 071/072.

Particulars

069/070 070/071 Changes

...Expenditure
e

3. Depreciation on Fixed Assets 1,839,552 1,505,339 (334,213) (18%)

159.1
140.7

e Company earned the operating profit of Rs. 140.7 million as compared to previous 160
year’s earning of Rs. 112.4 million thus increasing the operating profit by Rs.
28.3 million. 120

Particulars 069/070 070/071 Changes 20

Operating Revenue 130,700,903 159,089,261 28,388,358 21.7%

Operating Expenses o
including Depreciation 18,262,004 18,347,248 85,244 0.47%

40

............................................................................................................. 069/070 070/071

Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses
Operating Profit
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Provision for Bonus increased S, ]

by 26.6% from the previous year No. Particulars 069/070 070/071 Changes
(069/070) figure of Rs. 10.2 million ...Expenditure

to 12.8 million this year. Staff Bonus — S
is provided as per Bonus Act, 1974. % FrovisionforBomus LONTO IR AR Be
The Bonus Act requires provision

at the rate of 10% on the amount

of net profit before tax.

The company made the pretax profit I\?o Particulars 069/070 070/071 Changes

of Rs. 127,947,285 this year. The pro- ...Expenditure

.. I N
vision for Income Tax as per Income

. Profit Before T: 101,87 127,947,2 %
Tax Act 2058 for the year amounted 2t ronBelore fax Lt (.). 8 6500 ......... 9 o 85 ........ 26070785  28%
to Rs. 32,278,490 which was adjust- Provision for
ed against the total tax deposit of 6.  Taxation 25,517,660 = 32,195,150 6,677,490  26.2%

: (with Deferred Tax)

R5. 34’648’924 made durlng the ............................................................................................................
year. Thus the excess tax depositof %  CUrentTexixpenses = 25762603 | 32278450 o
Rs. 2,370,434 was shown as Advance 6b.  Deferred Tax Expenses (244,943) (83,341)

Tax in financial statements.

Net Profit 76,358,840 95,752,135 19,393,295  25.4%

Taxable temporary difference of Particul ']ID'eductible TTaxable —
articulars emporary emporary et (Rs.
Rs. 4,024,014 on assets result- Differences (NRs.)  Differences (NRs.)
ed in the deferred tax asset of
Re. 1006004 this year whereas ~ FxedAssets w02 e 9072
it was Rs. 922,668 last year. The Retirement Fund (CIT) 1,943,277 - 1,943,277
lncrease in deferred taX aSSEtS Of ...........................................................................................................
Rs.83,341 duringthe yearhasbeen ~  M€@veFund AL S 20a1665
adjusted in the Balance Sheet and Total Temporary Difference 4,024,014 - 4,024,014
1ncorporated' in the Income State- Deferred Tax Assets 1006.004
ment accordingly. (Liability) - WO,
Net Profit Rs. (Million)
100
75
50
The company made the net profit of 25
Rs. 95,752,135 this year which is an
increment of 25.4% from previous
year’s profit. 0

2065 2066 2067 2068 2069 2070
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Operating Income

Rs. (Million)

159.1

160

120

80

40

2064 2065 2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071
Operating Profit Margin
0 88%
90% 83.6% 86% =
67.5%
50.5% 50.3%
45%
22.5%
0%
2064 2065 2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071
Net Profit Margin
70%
52.5%
35%
17.5%
0%

2064 2065 2066 2067

2068

2069

2070 2071

Operating Profit

Rs. (Million)

160

140.7

120

80

40

2064 2065 2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071

Cost to Income Ratio

50% 49.5% 49.7%

37.5%

25%

12.5%

0%

2064 2065 2066 2067

2068 2069 2070 2071



Assets

Rs. (Million)

600

450

300

150

2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071

Return on Equity

34% 33.3%

w
N
N
X
w
N
N
axy
X

25.5%

17%

8.5%

0%

2066 2067 2068 2069
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Shareholders’ Funds and Grant
Rs. (Million)

600

548.3

450

300

150

2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071

Earning per Share

Rs.

100 92.6

75

50

25

2066 2067 2068 2069 2070 2071
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Internal control system refers to the process by which the company maintains
the environments that encourage transparency and incorruptibility and deter
fraudulent activities in the company. It is aimed at achieving following goals;
safeguard company’s assets; ensure the reliability and integrity of financial
information; ensure compliance; promote efficient and effective operations;
and accomplish the goals and objectives of the company.

The Kendra’s framework for internal control system consists of following
elements:

e control environment: this includes a focus on integrity, a commitment to
investigating discrepancies, diligence in designing systems and assigning
responsibilities.

e risk assessment: this involves identifying the areas in which the greatest
threat or risk of inaccuracies or loss exist. Greatest risks receive the greatest
amount of effort and level of control.

* monitoring and reviewing: system of internal control is periodically reviewed
by the management. By performing a periodic assessment, management
assures that internal control activities have not become obsolete or lost
due to turnover or other factors. They are improved to remain sufficient
for the current state of risks.

¢ information & communication: the Kendra regularly updates plans for
communicating information to all the staffs.

In order to further strengthen the internal control system in accounting and
finance, the Board relies on the audit committee and the internal audit reports.
The company’s periodic internal audit is done on a quarterly basis by the firm
“N.K. Joshi & Co., Chartered Accountants”, having its principle office in Naxal,
Kathmandu where as the annual audit at the end of fiscal year is done by the
firm “M.B. Shrestha & Co., Chartered Accountants” having its principle office
in Sankhamul Road, New Baneshwor.

The members of the Audit Committee regularly have formal and informal
discussions with internal auditors in connection with the results of reviews
undertaken by them and seek clarifications from them on any areas of reviews.
The members of the internal audit have direct access to management and the
audit committee and regularly bring many pertinent issues or problems for
the discussions with them.
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REPORTS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, currently consisting of three
members, assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling
its supervisory responsibilities for the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, the financial reporting
process, the system of internal business controls and risk
management, the internal and external audit process,
the internal and external auditor’s findings and recom-
mendations, independence and performance, as well
as the Company’s process for monitoring compliance
with laws and regulations and the general business
principles.

The audit committee met four times during the year
to discharge its duties and responsibilities. During the
period, the Audit Committee periodically reviewed mat-
ters relating to accounting policies, financial risks and
compliance with accounting standards. The Committee
focused on ensuring that the company’s systems and
controls are operating effectively, are responsive to the
challenges of the external environment and evolving in
line with the company’s growth. The Bureau’s high-risk
areas were also regularly reviewed by the Committee
to avoid/minimize business risks.

Specially, the committee among other actions:

reviewed the Kendra’s quarterly earnings, consolidated
financial statements and other financial reports as
submitted by the internal auditor at each quarter. It
also assessed in its quarterly meetings the adequacy
and appropriateness of internal control policies and
internal audit programs and their findings.

reviewed the final annual audit report submitted by the
external auditor, including non financial information,
prior to publication there of. The audit committee dis-
cussed the report in which the external auditor set forth
its findings and attention points and management’s
responses to those attention points.

reviewed compliance with statutory and legal require-
ments and regulations, particularly in the financial
domain. Important findings, identified risks and follow
up actions were examined thoroughly in order to allow
appropriate measures to be taken.

inquired about significant risks, reviewed Kendra’s policy
for risks assessment and risk management, and assessed
the steps management has taken to control these risks.

met in periodic executive session with each of the
external auditor, management and internal auditor.

Assessed the performance of the internal and external
auditor.

After the review of the financial statements for the year ended
Asar 31, 2071, the Audit Committee hereby states as follows:

the scope and planning of the audit were adequate in
committee’s opinion;

the accounting and reporting policies of the company
confirmed with the statutory requirements and agreed
ethical practices;

the Internal Control and Internal Audit Functions were
operating effectively; and

the external auditor’s findings as stated in the audit re-
port were being dealt by the management satisfactorily.

the company’s internal controls and business risks
management frameworks are delivering the desired
outputs and working effectively. The Committee is of
the view that adequate controls and procedures are in
place to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
position of the Bureau is well monitored and assets

are safeguarded.

Audit Committee thus recommends for the submission of
the Consolidated Financial Statement to Board of Directors
for its approval and for its filing to the Inland Revenue
Department of the Ministry of Finance for the tax purposes
and the copies sent to Company Registrar office and Nepal
Rastra Bank for their reference.

Audit Committee also recommends the name of M.B.
Shrestha & Co. as the external auditor of the company for
the year 071/072.
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COMMENTS & OBSERVATION
OF THE BOARD ON THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE’S REPORT

The Board reviewed the operational and financial performance of the company
and took assessment of the company’s risks and internal control framework
& its effectiveness as presented in the Audit Report submitted by the Audit
Committee. Board also went through the Final Audit Report of the company
for the year 070/071 as audited by M.B. Shrestha & Co., and submitted by the
Audit Committee to the Board.

Based on the review of the Report, Board concluded that the Committee has
presented a balanced report and given a fair assessment of the company’s risks,
performance, its position and prospects. Board thus approved the consolidated
financial statement of the company and gave its approval to be presented to the
shareholders in the forthcoming 10" Annual General Meeting of the company.

Board at the same time thanked the Audit Committee, Management, Internal
Auditor and Statutory Auditor for their cumulative efforts in maintaining the
account books correct and transparent and introducing the best practices in
internal control system and risk management.

As per the recommendation made by the Audit Committee, Board agreed on
the name of M.B. Shrestha & Company as the Statutory Auditor of the company
for the fiscal year 071/072. Board will propose the name of Statutory Auditor
in the 10® Annual General Meeting of the company for its ratification.
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STATEMENT OF THE VALUE ADDED

AND ITS DISTRIBUTION

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER AND TO THE
ECONOMY

The company paid Rs. 32,278,490 as the corporate tax to the Government of Nepal
in the year 070/071. Kendra also helped to collect Rs. 95 crores from the serious
defaulters (from blacklist borrowers) in the year thus helping the banks and financial
institutions reduce their non-performing loans.

EMPLOYEES SALARY

The total expense incurred by the company in the form of salary, allowance
and other facilities to the staffs amounted to Rs. 10,222,564. CEO was paid the
total remuneration package of Rs. 3,150,000 and the remaining staffs were paid
Rs. 7,072,564. CEO is also provided with vehicle and all its operating costs.

EMPLOYEES BONUS

Company has allocated Rs. 12,794,729 as the provision for bonus for the year 070/071
to be distributed to its staffs. Bonus will paid to all its staffs as per the provisions
made in the Labor Act of the country. The amount left after making the bonus
payment, 30% will be deposited in the National Staff Welfare Fund and the remaining
70% will be deposited in Staff Welfare Fund of the company.

RETAINED BY THE ENTITY

Company has transferred Rs. 95,752,135 to its Accumulated Profit account from
the earnings of the fiscal year 070/071.

D
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ADDITIONAL DETAILS

LITIGATION CASES

Out of the ten court cases carried forward from the year 069/070, fourteen new cases were registered and five cases were
settled by the court during the period. Thus there were only nineteen cases pending at the end of fiscal year 070/071,
which will be carried forward in the year 071/072.

NUMBER OF REGISTERED MEMBERS

Registered Registered
Categories of Financial Institutions Members Members
Till 069/070 Till 070/071
Commercial Banks 32 30
National Development Banks 19 20
Regional Development Banks 71 65
Finance Companies 64 52
Others (Rural Development Banks, The year 070/071 saw large drop in the number
Microfinance Institutions) 04 04 of financial institutions in the country. Altogether
nineteen financial institutions merged with other
Total Registered Numbers 190 171 institutions during the period bringing down the
numbers.

PROPOSAL FOR THE ISSUE OF CASH DIVIDEND

As per the decision reached by the 84" meeting of the Board of Directors of the company, Board decides to disburse 20% cash
dividend this year from its earning of the fiscal year 070/071. This will incur the total cash out flow of Rs. 20,681,600 from
the company’s reserves..

On behalf of the Board of the Directors, I would like to bring forward this proposal on the floor of this AGM for your discussion
and approval.

GRATITUDE

On behalf of the entire Board of Directors and the management team, I offer my sincere thanks and humble appreciation to
all the promoter shareholders for their continued support and commitment to this company. It is through your support that
this company is able to grow every year and consolidate its position as the provider of high quality credit bureau services
to its users. I also would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Board of Directors for offering steadfast direction and
guidance over the last year. I would like to thank all our member banks and financial institutions for being with us and
supporting us all the time. Your regular comments on our services have always kept us on toes and made us to be alert on
our service deliveries. We are grateful to Nepal Rastra Bank, our regulator, and all other concerned agencies for guiding us
and supporting us in our endeavor to move forward. At the end our success would not have been possible without the efforts
of our staffs who have always given their best to this company.
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LIST OF PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS AND
THEIR SHARES

S.No. Name of Banks and Financial Institutions Total Shares

1 Nepal Rastra Bank 103,680

COMMERCIAL BANKS

1 Nepal Bank Limited 13,724
....... ZRaStrlyaBamJyaBank13’724
....... 3Nab11Bank36’599
....... 4NepallnvestmentBank42’007
....... 5StandardCharteredBankNepal36’599
....... 6HlmalayanBank39’3O4
....... 7NepalsBIBank36’599
................. NepalBangladeShBank‘Lo’Ms
....... 9EvereStBank36’599
e 10 e B ank Of Kathmandu ............................................................................................. 56,414 ...................
e 11 ........ Nepalcred lt& CommerceBank ............................................................................. 36,599 ...................
e 12 ........ NIC ASla Bank ..................................................................................................... 42,013 ...................
13Lumb1mBank ..................................................................................................... 16,524 ...................
e 14 ........ MaChhaPUChhreBank .......................................................................................... 39,399 ...................
e 15 ........ Kuman Bank ...................................................................................................... 36’599 ...................
16 ........ LaxmlBank ........................................................................................................ 51,840 ...................
17 e SlddharthaBank ................................................................................................. 41’904 ...................
e 18 ........ Agﬂwk ure Devel opmen tBank .................................................................................. 3 1 104 ...................
19 e GrandBankNepal .................................................................................................. 3 6512 ...................
QONMBBank ............................................................................................................. 2800 ...................
21PrabhuBank .......................................................................................................... 8208 ...................

Total Commercial Bank 695,519



Board of Directors Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

S.No. Name of Banks and Financial Institutions Total Share
DEVELOPMENT BANKS

1 N.LID.C. Development Bank 11,664

2 Nepal Development Bank 11,664
....... 3YeUDevelopmentBank32470
....... 4ACEDevelopmentBank316OO
....... SKaﬂaShBlkaSBankzgoo
....... 6BusmessUmversalDevelopmentBank8126
....... 7v1b0rBlkaSBank1050
....... SApexBlkasBank2SOO

Total Development Banks 102,174

FINANCE COMPANIES

1 Nepal Aawas Finance 2,800
2 NIDC Capital Market 1,050
3 Narayani National Finance 5,599
4 Nepal Share Markets & Finance 2,800
5 Peoples Finance 2,800
6 Himalaya Finance & Savings 1,050
United Finance 2,800

....... R SRR
Union Finance 2,800
Srijana Finance 4,549

...... SRR IS
Kathmandu Finance 7,984

...... SRR IS
Prudential Finance 2,800

...... s
Nepal Housing & Merchant Finance 1,050

...... g
Paschimanchal Finance Company 2,800
14 Samjhana Finance 2,800
15 Goodwill Finance 6,134
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S.No. Name of Banks and Financial Institutions Total Share
17 Siddhartha Finance 13,168
e 18 e I ntem atlonal Leasmg& Fmance Company ..................................................................... 3’ 590 ...................
19 ........ Mahalaxml Fm ance ................................................................................................. 2’ 800 ...................
20 e ProgTe551ve Fmance ................................................................................................. 2’800 ...................
21GeneralFmance ...................................................................................................... 2’800 ...................
22CemralFmance ...................................................................................................... 2’800 ...................
e 23 e PremlerFlnance ..................................................................................................... 2’800 ...................
e 24 ........ Mul tlpurposesawngco_ operatlve ............................................................................... 2’ 800 ...................
255ynergyFmame .................................................................................................... 2 0’632 ...................
ZGOmFmance ........................................................................................................... 1’050 ...................
e 27 ........ Woﬂd MerChant B an km g & . Fl nan Ce ............................................................................. 2’ 800 ...................
e 28 e C apltal MerChant Bankmg & Fm ance ............................................................................ 1’ 050 ...................
29CrystalFmance ...................................................................................................... 2’800 ...................
e 30 e GhUWEShWOH MeIChant Bankmg &Fmance ................................................................... 2’800 ...................
31PatanFmance ........................................................................................................ 1’050 ...................
e 32 e LahtpurFmance ..................................................................................................... 2’800 ...................
33 ........ Nepal Fmance ........................................................................................................ 4’ 38 5 ...................
e 34 e Lumblm Fmance&Leasmg ........................................................................................ 1’050 ...................

Total Finance Companies 132,707
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M.B. SHRESTHA & CO.  Tel  :4781818

Fax No.; 977-1-4781789

Chartered Accountants . E-mail : mbsshrestha@gmail.com
Sankhamul Road G.P.O. Box:720

New Baneshwar Kathmandu, Nepal.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LTD.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S Karja Suchana Kendra Limited,
which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at Ashadh 32, 2071 corresponding to July 16, 2014 and
the Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and notes to accounts.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and the presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards in so far as applicable in
compliance with prevailing legislations, and for such internal control as management
determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material mis-statement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ehtical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material mis-
statement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material mis-statement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Report on Requirement of Company Act _
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that

a) We have obtained informations and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the company law have been kept
by the company, in so far as appears from our examination of those books of account
and the financial statements dealt with by this report, are in agreement with the book of
accounts.

¢) During the audit, we have not come across the cases, where the Board of Directors or
any member thereof or any employee of the company has acted deliberately in
contravention to the provisions of the law relating to accounts or ﬁljaappropriated funds
of the company or damage to the company, nor have we been informed of any such case

by the management.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the said financial statements referred to above, read together with the notes attached thereto
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as of Ashadh 32, 2071 (July 16,
2014), and of the results of its financial performances and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards in so far as applicable in compliance with the

prevailing legislations.

-

—

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA
M.B.Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Date: December 10, 2014 (24/08/2071)
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Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 32, 2071 (Corresponding to July 16, 2014)

Particulars Schedule Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital
PaldupShareCapltall .................................. 103,408,000 .............................. 103,408,000 ...................
SN urplus ..............................................................................................................................................................................................
e 213’507’754 .............................. 133,501,588 ...................
R
Grant/FundfromA51anDevelopmentBank e 231,369,813 .................................................. ey

Total 548,285,567 236,909,588

ASSETS

Fixed Assets less Depreciation 4a . 268,392,073 6,557,550

Pre-Paid, Advances, Loans and Deposits 8 18,669,398 10,561,964
Total (A) 32,724,815 28,732,131
Current Liabilities and Provisions (B)
TradeandOtherPayables9 ....................................... 6)785’873 ................................... 6,614,082 ...................
Prov151ons .................................................................................. 1 012’794’729 ................................. 10,187,650 ...................
Total (B) 19,580,602 16,801,732
Net Current - SSEtS(A_ B) ............................................................................................. 13’ 1 44,213 ................................ 11, 93 0 ’399 ...................
e 1’ 00 6,004 ..................................... 92 5 ,663 ...................
Total 548,285,567 236,909,588
| Significant Accounting Policies andNotes I3 s
N schedule S . form an mtegral parts . of thls . Fmanc1a1 ........................................................................... As per our report . of even date i
| Swtements. |
Anil Chandra Adhikari Tulasi Ram Gautam C.A., Maheswarendra B. Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer Chairman M.B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Ajay Shrestha Jyoti Prakash Pandey Nara Bahadur Thapa Rajendra Man Shakya
Director Director Director Director

Date : December 10, 2014
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Income Statement

For the Period from Shrawan 01, 2070 to Ashad 32, 2071
(Corresponding Period from July 16, 2013 to July 16, 2014)

Particulars Schedule Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
A.INCOME :
1. Service Charge 140,550,540 112,271,008
2. Interest 18,535,221 18,375,895
3. Registration Charge 1,000 4,000
4. Other Income 2,500 50,000
Total 159,089,261 130,700,903
B. EXPENDITURE :
1. Operating Expenses 11 16,841,909 16,422,452
2. Non Operating Expenses 12 = 374,749
3. Depreciation on Fixed Assets 4 1,505,339 1,839,552
4. Provision for bonus 12,794,729 10,187,650
| Proﬁt Before . Tax g (PBT) .........................................................................................
5. Provision for Taxation (with Deferred Tax) 32,195,149 25,517,659
5.1 Current Tax Expenses 32,278,490 25,762,603
5.2 Deferred Tax Expenses (83,341) (244,943)
6. Net Profit Transferred to Accumulated Profit 95,752,135 76,358,841
Total 159,089,261 130,700,903

All Schedules form an integral parts of this Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date

Anil Chandra Adhikari Tulasi Ram Gautam C.A., Maheswarendra B. Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer Chairman M.B. Shrestha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Ajay Shrestha Jyoti Prakash Pandey Nara Bahadur Thapa Rajendra Man Shakya
Director Director Director Director

Date : December 10, 2014
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Profit and Loss Appropriation Account

For the Period from Shrawan 01, 2070 to Ashad 32, 2071
(Corresponding Period from July 16, 2013 to July 16, 2014)

Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)

INCOME :

1 Accumulated Profit up to the Last Year 66,404,833 21,073,903
e o , 752,135 ................................... 76,358 ,8 PR

Total 162,156,968 97,432,744

EXPENSES :

1 Accumulated Loss up to the Last Year - -
DR O e
3Genera1Reserve19,150,427 ................................... 15’271’768 ...................
P R O e
5Cap1talReserve ................................................................................................................. O e
T s 00 O e
o ropos e 20, 681,600 ................................... 15’511’2 g
T e 00 O e e
e 83'341 ........................................ ; 44’943 ...................
9proposedBonusshare ..................................................................................................... O R
S PerlodAdJustment ...................................................................................... 234’769 ................................................... s

Total 40,150,137 31,027,911

Accumulated Profit/(Loss) 122,006,831 66,404,833

As per our report of even date

Anil Chandra Adhikari Tulasi Ram Gautam C.A., Maheswarendra B. Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer Chairman M.B. Shrestha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Ajay Shrestha Jyoti Prakash Pandey Nara Bahadur Thapa Rajendra Man Shakya
Director Director Director Director

Date : December 10, 2014
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Cash Flow Statement

For the Period from Shrawan 01, 2070 to Ashad 32, 2071
(Corresponding Period from July 16, 2013 to July 16, 2014)

Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit as per P&L A/C 95,752,135 76,358,841
AdJu Stments ..................................................................................................................................................
...... Interestlncome(18,535’221)(18,375,895)
...... Deprecmtlon1’505’3391’839’552
...... PrlorpenodAdJustment(234,769)-
operaUngproﬁtBeforeworkmgCapltalchanges78,487,48559,322,498 .................
L. Change mwOrk mgcap 1ta] .................................................................................................................................
........ Increase/(])ecrease)mpr(msmn2,607,0792,640,949
........ Increase/(Decrease)mTradeandOtherpayables88,451(935,709)
........ (Increase)/]:)ecreasemAdvances,Loans&Depomts (8,107,433)(8,500,848)
........ (Increase)/[)ecrease1n']'yade&OtherRecelvab]es(886,548)(1,576,813)
Total (A) 72,189,033 51,400,078
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (31,970,051) (514,357)
......... SaleofleedAssets
......... : nvestments(48,244,301)(70,381,190)
......... ; nterestmcome18,535,22118,375,895
Total (B) (61,679,131) (52,519,652)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Share Capital (Except Bonus Share)

Dividend Paid (15,511,200) (8,617,260)
Total (C) (15,511,200) (8,617,260)
Net Cash Increase/Decrease (A+B+C) (5,001,298) (9,736,834)
..... AddOpemngcaSh&BankBalance 8’917,584 18’654’418
Closing Cash & Bank Balance 3,916,287 8,917,584
Anil Chandra Adhikari Tulasi Ram Gautam C.A., Maheswarendra B. Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer Chairman M.B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Ajay Shrestha Jyoti Prakash Pandey Nara Bahadur Thapa Rajendra Man Shakya
Director Director Director Director

Date : December 10, 2014
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Schedules to Balance Sheet
As at Ashad 32,2071

SHARE CAPITAL Schedule -1

Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)

Authorised Share Capital

(15,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each) 150,000,000 150,000,000
(1,034,080 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each) 103,408,000 103,408,000

(1,034,080 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each) 103,408,000 103,408,000
Total 103,408,000 103,408,000
RESERVE & SURPLUS Schedule -2
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Capital Reserve 7,299,257 7,299,257
e 62, 514,062 .......................... 43’ . 3,635 .............
e R 122, 5 6,831 .......................... 66,404,833 .............
e 1,006,004 ............................. 922,663 .............
ProposedCashD1v1dend ........................................................................ 20,681'600 e 15’511’200 ............
Total 213,507,754 133,501,588
GRANT/FUND Schedule -3
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)

From Asian Development Fund 231,369,813 -
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Schedules to Balance Sheet
As at Ashad 32,2071

INVESTMENTS Schedule - 5
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Investments
s eddeposlt e 262, 800,000 .......................... 214, 900,000 ...............
e R 1’ % 3’277 .............................. 1, 598976 ...............
S epa] ...................................................................................... 1’ OOO’OOO ............................. 1,000,000 ...............
Total 265,743,277 217,498,976
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLE Schedule - 6
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Receivables
SN harge ................................................................................. 4’ 810,153 .............................. 4,250’910 ...............
e e 5’ s 8,977 .............................. 5’001’672 ...............
Total 10,139,130 9,252,582
CASH AND BANK BALANCE Schedule -7
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Cash in Hand - -
. Nepal e 52,768 ................................. 5 ,468 ...............
B .~~~ 996,8 B 4’702’195 ...............
e R 2,450,181 ............................. 4’105 ,613 ...............
Nab11Bank(LeaveDep051t)142,622 ................................... ; ,604 ...............
S, A/C .................................................................. 273,8 B 47704 ...............
Total 3,916,287 8,917,584
PRE-PAID, ADVANCES, LOANS AND DEPOSITS Schedule - 8
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
National Life Insurance (Loan Deposit) 410,579 374,039
NepalTelecommumcatlon“23,060 ................................. ; 3,060 ...............
e R 224,251 ............................... 292’757 ...............
T g~~~ 2, 352, e R 1,781,341 ...............
. Cheq o R 7,202,435 ............................. 7,812,925 ...............
e 8,456, T 277’842 ...............

Total 18,669,398 10,561,964
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Schedule - 9
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Auditors Fee 192,469 176,469
L. Telephone Ch arge (P ayable) ......................................................................... 746 ................................... 5’9 57 ..............
L. Others Payable ................................................................................... 2,443, 835 .............................. 2’813’090 ..............
L. Advance ReCEl Ved Of Se mce Charges ....................................................... 14 2’ 695 .................................. 60’477 ..............
L. Gratm t y Fund/R etlrementFund (CIT) ...................................................... 1, 94 3, 277 .............................. 1’598’9 76 ..............
L. Le ave Fund ....................................................................................... 2, 04 1’ 665 .............................. 1’908’647 ..............
! TDS Payable ................................................................................................. B _ ..............
L. Depo Sltof Bld Bon d ....................................................................................... B _ ..............
! NLG I n Su rance Payable ................................................................................... B _ ..............
Bonuspayablem,l% .................................. 50’466 ..............
L. DMd end Payable .......................................................................................... T _ ..............
Total 6,785,873 6,614,082
PROVISIONS Schedule - 10
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Provision for Income Tax - -
PrOVISlonforBonus12,794,729 ............................. 10’187’650 ..............

12,794,729 10,187,650
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Schedules to Income Statement
For the Period from Shrawan, 2070 to Ashad 32, 2071

OPERATING EXPENSES Schedule -11
A. Staff Related Expenses
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Salary & Allowances 10,148,844 9,583,675
R, Expenses .............................................................. 73’720 ....................................... 71,335 ...............
Sub - Total A 10,222,564 9,655,010

B. Administrative Expenses

Particulars Current Quarter (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)

Printing and Stationery 197,989 128,555
SRR Expenses .................................................................. ; 80,780 ..................................... 202,998 ...............
L POStalcharge ...................................................................... . ’440 ........................................ 5,435 ...............
Repalrand e
a)RepalrExpenses ......................................................... 63,008 ..................................... 129,338 ...............
............... b)MamtenanceExpenses751,430239,223
........... Meetngxpenses
b 'a'). MeetmgAll e R ; 44,000 ..................................... 178,000 ...............
............... b)OtherMeetngxpenses18,30718,223
........... Telephonecharge70,09379,976
........... Tramngxpenses56,33944,846
........... TravelhngExpenses477,796370,084
R """~ 75,142 ....................................... 90,378 ...............
........... AudltorExpenses
............... a)Auchtor‘sFee178,843178,843
............... b)OtherAud1tor'sExpenses22,72820,582
........... Water,EleCtnCltyandOtherS
............... a)Electr1c1tyExpenses530,923442422
............... b)DrmkmgWater40,78445,640
............... c)Other557,63955,472
........... LegalExpenses
............... a)LegalFee17,647
............... b)OtherLegalExpenses35,85570,180
B """ e R 8,225 ...............
........... WebChargesSS2,570480,985
........... PaperandPubl1cat1on99,72037,782
OfﬁceRent,SecurltyandOtherExpenses1,957,950 ................................... 1,811,280 ...............
........... M1sce11aneousExpenses181,458143,612
........... Angxpenses449,339271,043
........... Furmtureanquu1pmentExpenses81,88773,984
........... BusmessExpenses200,000100,000
........... FestwalandceremonyExpenses71,22919,334
........... IFCInterventmnExpenses-1,521,000

Sub - Total B 6,619,345 6,767,442

Grand Total 16,841,909 16,422,452
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NON OPERATING EXPENSES Schedule -12
Particulars Current Quarter (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Waive Off Loan and Advance = -

Write Off - -

Total - -
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Account

For the period ended on Ashad 32, 2071

5.1

General
Incorporation and Legal form of the Company:

The company is incorporated as a public limited
company under the Company Act 2063.

Nature of Business
The primary objective of the company is to provide Credit
Information to Banks and Financial Institutions.

Accounting convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention and comply with Nepal
Accounting Standards in so far as applicable.

Basis of Accounting
Income and Expenses have been accounted for on Accrual

basis.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

The Fixed Assets of the company are stated at Cost

less Accumulated Depreciation. Depreciation is charged to the
Profit & Loss Account using the following rates and methods:

5.2

Depreciation = Method of

Nature of Assets .
Rate Calculation

Building 5% WDV
Computers, Furniture &
Fixtures and Office 25% WDV
Equipment
Vehicles 20% WDV
Plant and Machinery 15% WDV
Other Intangible Assets 20% STL

Fixed Assets (Hardware and Third Party Software)
The Fixed Assets as aforesaid are yet to gene rate expected
future economic benefits and these fixed assets are still
to putin use for commercial purposes.As such, pending
capitalization, no depreciation expenses is recognized.

Schedule - 13

Provision for Income tax

The provision for Income Tax has been calculated at the
rate applicable for that year in accordance with Income Tax
Act and Rules. The Provision for Income Tax as per Income
Tax Act 2058 for the year is NRs. 32,195,149. The amount
has been adjusted against the Advance Tax.

Deferred Tax

Nepal Accounting Standard 09, “Income Taxes” has been
complied with from the fiscal year 064/065. The details of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year 070/071 are
as follows:-

Deductible Taxable

q Temporary  Temporary

Particulars Differences Differences
(NRs.) (NRs.)
Fixed Assets 39,072 - 39,072
Retirement
1,943,277 - 1,943,277

Fund (CIT)
Leave Fund 2,041,665 - 2,041,665
Total Temporary ) 514 - 4,024,014
Difference
Deferred Tax 1,006,004 - 1,006,004

Assets (Liability)

The deferred tax asset arising due to the temporary differ-
ence amounts to NRs. 1,006,004 this year whereas it was
NRs. 922,663 in previous year. The increase in deferred tax
assets by NRs. 83,341 during the year has been added to
the previous years’ balance of the deferred tax assets in the
Balance Sheet and incorporated as the deferred tax expense
in the Income Statement of the current year.

Provision for Staff Bonus
Staff bonus is provided at 10% of Net Profit before Tax.



10.

11.

General Reserve

As per the provision of the Articles of Association, 20%
of the current year’s profit amounting to NRs. 19,150,427
has been transferred to General Reserve.

Investments
Investments have been recorded at Cost Price.

Loan to Staff

Loan to staff represent loan granted to employees at
concessional interest rate as per the policy of the com-
pany. Interest on such loan is recovered from employees
on monthly basis and shown as income. Employees of
the company availing such loan facility are required to
obtain life insurance policy with insured sum equivalent
to the amount of loan granted. Such policies are assigned
to the company. Loans are recovered upon maturity of
insurance policy.

12.

13.
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Cash Dividend and Bonus Share

Board has decided on its 84th Board Meeting dated Decem-
ber 10,2014 to disburse 20% Cash Dividend to its existing
shareholders subject to the approval from the forthcoming
10th Annual General Meeting of the Company. Proposed
cash dividend amounting to NRs. 20,681,600 has been set
aside through Profit and Loss Appropriation Account.

Rounding-Off/Previous Year Figures

Figures are rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year
figures has been regrouped or rearranged wherever nec-
essary.
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